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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

RFP NO. 14-2879P
TO BE OPENED: JUNE 13, 2014
TITLE: SESSION SYSTEMS REPLACEMENT SOFTWARE AND IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES
ADDENDUM NO. 1
To All Offerors:

Please make the following corrections to this RFP (old information interlined and new bold and underlined).

Section 1.2 on page 5 corrected as follows:

The contract period is three five year(s), beginning September 3, 2014, and ending September 2, 2019, inclusive. 

Section 1.4.3 on page 5 corrected as follows:

The State will provide a written response by May 30, 2104 2014 to all questions received by May 22, 2014.

Appendix E-Requirements Traceability Matrix (RTM) has been updated to include the question and answer information in the right most columns highlighted in blue to make them stand out. (Appendix-E-Requirements-Traceability-Matrix UPDATE locked) This sheet is protected other than the Proposed System How Met column. Use this updated RTM for submitting with your proposal.
Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No 1.
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Penny Moon
Senior Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP14-2879P  

	1. 
	4
	
	Q.      Would the LSD consider extending the question period by one week to allow for more comprehensive understanding of the requirements by the vendors?
A.     The timelines will not be altered.

	2. 
	4
	
	Q.      Would the LSD consider extending the submission deadline past June 13 by one week?
A.     The proposal due date will not be extended.

	3. 
	5
	1.2
	Q.      The contract period is listed as 3 years but states “beginning September 3, 2014, and ending September 2, 2019” – is the contract for a 3 or 5 year period?
A.     It is a five year contract. Please see correction noted above.

	4. 
	7
	1.7.3
	Q.      Multiple proposals. Does this mean that vendors can submit more than one offer with different parties or consortiums?
A.     The intent of this section is to allow interested parties to submit more than one approach to the project.

	5. 
	7
	1.7.4
	Q.      Since the conversion is a critical aspect, could the RFP Response due date be postponed to a later date than June 13?
A.     The proposal due date will not be extended.

	6. 
	11
	3.1
	Q.      Is there thought the MCA database will be tightly integrated with the SSR?
A.      Yes.  As stated throughout the RFP, the core data in this system is the State’s legal statutes, the Montana Code Annotated (MCA).

	7. 
	11
	3.1
	Q.      Barring the conversion, what is the role(s) of the MCA database with regard to the SSR?
A.     The SSR project will replace the current MCA database with a new MCA source (depending on proposal may be a database, document repository or otherwise).

	8. 
	12
	3.1
	Q.      There are 5 processes identified as ‘lower priority.’
How is each of the 5 processes weighted in the overall scoring?  Would the State consider a proposal compliant that did not address some or all of these 5 processes?
A.      Yes, proposals that do not address some or all of the lower priority areas will be considered.  LSD is looking for as much functionality as possible for the budget.

	9. 
	12
	3.1
	Q.     ‘Primary’ business processes are listed and the State uses the phrase “not limited to:”
Please provide a complete list of primary business processes the vendors need to consider.
A.      Because the list is a very abbreviated summary of the functionality requested in the RFP, the 'not limited to' is meant to imply that more details are included in the RFP itself, the appendices, and any additional information provided during the RFP process.

	10. 
	12
	3.1
	Q.     “If the new system does not accommodate these functional areas, some interfaces may be required to provide data to the existing business processes and information systems.” –
What are the specifications of these interfaces?
A.      Examples of output files have been posted to the website along with this Addendum (Output Examples 20140528 final.xlsx), which address the majority of the contents of the data interfaced.  In addition, high level details have been provided which indicate the nature of the data contained in each interface.

	11. 
	14
	3.2.1.4
	Q.      Conversion is usually part of all Legislation Management and Production System implementation. Our past experience shows that conversion of legislative content is critical to the continuing business of any jurisdiction. Getting access to the most exhaustive documentation on the content to be converted will not only ensure the most accurate evaluation for responding to the RFP, but also prepare for the best realization of such delicate conversion during development.
MCA conversion - could we get access to the following?

- SGML or SGML-like elements definitions.

- SGML declaration

- SGML DTD (Description Type Documents)

- Examples of SGML content
A.      Appendix G provides details on the Document Types (with sample document names) for the Constitution, MCA Statues and Annotations database.  This is followed by the Actual Text from Session Law Chapter 4.  Next in this document is the Mainframe TDMS view of that same item which shows the mark up used and information from each document type.
In addition to Appendix G in the RFP, one SGM markup file (Montana Title1 SGM format) is being placed on the web site along with this Addendum (#1).  This file is created by our internal staff as part of the process used to load the Folio flat file.  We have existing programs and processes to create files like this for all titles.  The staff and code used to create these files will be made available to the project to create conversion source files as needed.

	12. 
	14
	3.2.1.4
	Q.      It is mentioned that the existing SGML-like formatted data is to be converted to XML. Is this required for the solution? If a storage repository uses other formatting and types, is it permissible to use a different format for the MCA?
A.      Another format would be acceptable only if that format can be used to produce an XML document with no extra effort.  If this is proposed, provide detailed descriptions and explanation for producing XML documents.

	13. 
	15
	3.2.1.4
	Q.     Hardware/Software – “The contractor must ensure…”
Please describe role and responsibility of the State’s IT team in setting up for the various test and ultimately for a production environment.
A.      Since the contractor knows what items are required for their system to operate, they must ensure that all items are in place for each phase listed.   As described in section 2.4.4 all central hardware will be provided by LSD and/or the State of Montana following the recommendations, technical and operation documentation, and installation guides provided by the contractor.  As noted in many subsections of 3.4.1 the contractor is expected to assist with the installation and configuration of environmental components when requested.

	14. 
	15
	3.2.1.4
	Q.     “Hardware/Software – The contractor must ensure that all hardware, software, devices, and network connectivity are in place and operational for system test, pilot, acceptance test, and production.
Implementation” –

Is the State providing the h/w and network or are you expecting the vendor to supply or support these as part of the contract?
A.      As stated in section 3.4.4 LSD will provide central hardware.  Sections 3.4.1, 3.4.2, and 3.4.3 specifically ask for details on the items needed to technically house the proposed system.

	15. 
	16
	3.2.2
	Q.      What is the version of WordPerfect actually in use for drafting?
A.      Currently WordPerfect version 15 is being used.  However, an upgrade is in process that should result in WordPerfect version 16 being used by the time this contract is in place.

	16. 
	16
	3.2.2
	Q.      Would it be possible to receive as quickly as possible all the macros used in WordPerfect and the documentation that is related to the development and maintenance of these macros?
A.      The macros have been posted on the RFP web site along with the publication of this Addendum (Example Output zip file).

	17. 
	16
	3.2.2
	Q.      Would it be possible to receive as quickly as possible the user guide related to the usage of the WordPerfect macros?
A.      Additional user manuals and help files have been posted on the RFP web site along with the publication of the Addendum (Example Output zip file).  

	18. 
	16
	3.2.2
	Q.      The RFP states that:
“The offeror must produce business process models for all LSD processes that touch on the requirements found in this RFP and its attachments.”
We’re assuming that this business model creation process is part of the project and is not required in the RFP response. Can you confirm that?
A.      Yes, this is part of the project startup phase.

	19. 
	17
	3.2.2.1
	Q.     “…offeror must identify (approx.) total number of hours and the percentage of the total hours of work…”
Please explain how this will be weighted in the evaluation process.   What are the State’s expectations?  Is there a minimum % threshold that we must cross?
A.      See the response guideline for section 5.2 on page 47.  There is not a minimum threshold.

	20. 
	17
	3.2.2.1
	Q.     “quickly call the meeting (within an hour)…”
Does the State have specific expectations of the contractor in this regard?  On the other hand, was this included simply to reinforce the point?
A.      The 'within an hour' meeting was provided as an example of why key resources onsite project coordination and issue resolution are more productive if resources and quickly assemble and discuss work items.

	21. 
	18
	3.2.2.3
	Q.      Could you please confirm the definition of subcontractor location?
A.      A subcontractor is an individual or business that signs a contract to perform part or all of the obligations of another's contract.  Section 3.2.2.2 requires the identification of all remote contractor locations.  Section 3.2.2.3 requires the contractor to get approval from LSD before work can begin at any subcontractor location.

	22. 
	19
	3.2.4
	Q.     “must contain scenarios that test every aspect of security”   Please provide a more accurate description of the State’s expectation.
It is unlikely we would be able to test the State’s firewalls, intrusion detection systems and so on.
A.      The expectation is that all elements of the proposed system/application will be tested.  Testing the security of the infrastructure of the State of Montana is not expected.  The contractor should describe how they will manage the testing process and identify what elements of their application security component would be deemed in scope and out of scope.

	23. 
	20
	3.2.4.3
	Q.     “These reports must provide everything required to validate that all of the results from pilot testing are also found on the legacy systems.” –
Is the expectation that the new system will behave exactly as the old system did? Are you anticipating process changes due to the new system?
A.      This sentence begins with the statement 'to the degree feasible (as negotiated jointly by the offeror and LSD)'.  The existing system has been performing well for years and will provide an excellent parallel test mechanism.  That being said, the new system is not expected to behave exactly as the old system did.  The new system is expected to deliver the required business functionality, as described in the RFP.  The goal is to use metrics from the legacy system to verify the behavior of the new system where is it feasible.

	24. 
	22
	3.2.8
	Q.      What does the State define as a “defect”?
A.     See section 3.2.13.

	25. 
	23
	3.2.8
	Q.     “The contractor must make adequate staff available to existing releases with senior level developers that have at least six months of SSR experience for the duration of each warranty period. This will ensure that those phases that have been deployed into production do not suffer due to the contractor’s desire to implement future system releases.” –
Does the State have an expectation of dedicated support staff as part of the contract price?
A.      LSD does not expect full time dedicated staff for the duration of the warranty.  However, the expectation is that the staff working on the SSR project during warranty will have prior project experience as stated.

	26. 
	23
	3.2.9
	Q.     “mentoring is expected for up to four different LSD developers over the contract period.” –

How many LSD staff will be involved in the project and what are their roles?
A.       LSD expects roughly 20 staff people to plan roles on the project.  These roles include Program Director, Project Manager, Subject Matter Expert, Developer, Tester, Network/hardware support, and possibly IV&V.

	27. 
	23
	3.2.10
	Q.     Could you please clarify the intended role of the LSD development staff in the project. For example will certain parts of the system be developed by them, will they develop test cases, etc..? Would the state consider side-by-side development to occur off site?
A.      The State's preference would be side-by-side development to the extent feasible and cost effective.  When not feasible there needs to be sufficient knowledge transfer from the contractor to LSD staff such that LSD can be primary support for the system long-term.

	28. 
	26
	3.2.10
	Q.      Response Guidelines – “…. Intend to mentor LSD development staff”
Please provide a clear statement re: expected role and responsibility, and level of seniority if available, for the LSD development staff during the project deployment.
A.      The goal is for LSD to become independently capable of maintaining the system after the contract is complete.  Thus LSD IT staff must be capable of development, maintenance, and configuration of the system.  Our assumption is that hands on, real world learning is the best way to prepare staff for this task.  Propose the mentoring method that will allow our staff to be fully prepared to enhance and maintain the system after the contract ends.  The LSD resources assigned to this task will vary based on the technology of the proposed system.  Our goals will be in alignment to have the best prepared staff as possible.  In general, the LSD IT staff have five or more years experience in our existing environments.  If specific experience, training, or certification would be beneficial to working in the hardware and software environment proposed please provide details.

	29. 
	26
	3.2.10
	Q.     Response Guidelines – “….Describe … experiences in working with an IV&V”
Please provide clear description of the State’s expectations in this response, and the types of information that is being requested.
A.      The IV&V contractor (if engaged) will provide an unbiased review of the project as a whole.  This includes processes, procedures, management, deliverables and quality.  Most of this work will be completed using the work products and deliverables already described in the RFP.  However, occasional meetings to clarify points may be requested.  We would like to understand if you have successfully worked in an environment like this on other projects.

	30. 
	26
	3.2.10
	Q.     How many resources does the state expect the vendor to supply for the duration of the contract?
A.      LSD expects the offeror to propose a staffing matrix that will allow the offeror to successfully deliver the system being proposed in such a manner as to meet the requirements included in the RFP.  LSD does not have a prescribed resourcing model expected for the project.

	31. 
	27
	3.2.12
	Q.     “• The contractor must supply deliverables with proper spelling, punctuation, grammar, tables of contents, and indices where appropriate and with other formatting as deemed appropriate by LSD.” –
Will LSD be providing a template definition for what is expected for each deliverable?
A.      LSD assumes the vendor will have deliverables that fit the solution and methodology being proposed but will also work with the vendor to provide templates if the methodology being used doesn't have a deliverable for a particular topic.  
Deliverables have been described in Appendix H.

	32. 
	28
	3.2.13.1
	Q.      Help Desk – #1 Please provide all session start/end dates for the past 3 years so that we can properly frame expectations.
A.      As stated in the last paragraph of section 3.2.1.5, the 2015 session will start at the beginning of January and will end near the of April 2015.  The start date is January 5th.  The last day is somewhat variable but will likely be in the last week of April.

	33. 
	28
	3.2.13.1
	Q.      Help Desk – there is reference to “high volume periods”.
How are these defined?  Are they predictable?  In addition, in the past 3 years how many days of ‘high-volume’ load has the State experienced?
A.      High volume periods are typically during the bi-annual legislative session.  However, the legislature does on occasion hold special sessions where additional support may be needed.  These typically last three to ten days and could possibly occur twice during the life of this contract.

	34. 
	28
	3.2.13.1
	Q.     Help Desk –
At what point in the project does LSD expect to have access to the helpdesk?
A.      Access to the help desk system is expected from project startup through project completion.   Section 3.2.13.1 states the helpdesk function will be housed on the LSD SSR SharePoint site.  Access to help desk support is expected during all testing cycles and upon system go live.

	35. 
	28
	3.2.13.1
	Q.      Help Desk –
Are the help-desk and on-call services included in the budget provided for in this RFP?
A.      Yes.

	36. 
	29
	3.3.1
	Q.      Requirements Traceability Matrix. The RTM in Appendix E does not include the "How Met" column described in this section. Please clarify.
A.      The column named 'Proposed Solution' is the only column the offeror should populate.  All other columns in the sheet will be deleted.  No comment, questions or clarifications are allowed in the submitted spreadsheet.  Any details, comments, clarifications or notes should be addressed in the proposal (NOT the spreadsheet) in response to section 3.3 or other sections in the RFP.

	37. 
	31
	3.3.2
	Q.     “…bills passed in the 2015 Legislative Session.”   What are the anticipated dates of the 2015 session, please?
A.      See response to question #32.

	38. 
	32
	3.3.3
	Q.     “. The new system must provide a functional equivalent for macros used by any business process that is described as using or being performed by a macro” –
Does the State expect the new system will behave exactly as the old system did? Are you anticipating process changes due to the new system?
A.      LSD is expecting some process changes due to the new system.  To be clear, the existing business functionality must be provided and is mandated by state law in some cases.  LSD hopes to gain efficiencies and have more effective ways to doing work by implementing the new system.  As stated in the second paragraph of section 3.3 "Where appropriate or desirable, offeror is encouraged to suggest alternate solutions, methods, or approaches to meeting the business requirements in this RFP. LSD is willing to change internal processes when doing so makes sense to LSD, and the change(s) do not conflict with existing policy. The requirements in this RFP define “what we want” for offeror RFP response purposes."

	39. 
	32
	3.3.3
	Q.     “The contractor must work with LSD employees during a forms redesign process that will ensure that all paper forms can be generated from the SSR system and that the forms align with and contain format, content, and numbering requirements used with the SSR system and input windows to ensure that pertinent offline processes interface smoothly with SSR automated processing requirements” –
How many forms are currently in place? Will they all exist when the new system is live?
A.      LSD has provided an output list and as many examples as possible as part of this Addendum (Output Examples 20140528 final.xlsx).  We expect some of the existing paper objects will be met with systematic processes, thus it is impossible to list which forms will exist after the SSR system is in place.  The goal here is to make sure that all needed forms can be produced and contain the information required by the system to function and perform the business processes defined in this RFP.  

	40. 
	33
	3.3.3.2
	Q.     Is MT Legislature in section 3.3.3.2 looking to provide minutes annotation solution for committee’s as part of the section related to “agenda Preparation and vote System Process?
A.     No.  The Journal is and will continue to be the record for House and Senate floor sessions.

	41. 
	33
	3.3.3.2
	Q.     Is the Reference “agenda Preparation” for committees or all floor sessions as well?
A.      Agenda preparation in this section refers to House and Senate floor sessions only.

	42. 
	33
	3.3.3.2
	Q.     For voting system processes would this refer to tablet voting in committee room and floor session?
A.      There is no desire for changes to voting for House and Senate chambers.  Some type of committee room electronic vote recording method is desirable.

	43. 
	33
	3.3.3.2
	Q.     For voting system processes would there be a preference for a Public Display in each committee room to show the Action of the Meeting?
A.     Public displays in committee rooms would be considered, but is very low priority.

	44. 
	33
	3.3.3.2
	Q.     Is an API needed to pull real time votes from the voting system for other system integrations?
A.      Currently, votes are recorded to our Oracle database status system when they occur.  An API is not needed as direct queries to that database meet current needs.

	45. 
	33
	3.3.3.2
	Q.     Section 3.3.3.2 has listed audio/video streaming and archive process.  Is the goal to integrate the existing webcasting solution via the solutions API to other 3rd party or in house solutions?
A.      The goal is to integrate all of the session related processes and services to the greatest degree feasible.  LSD currently has an A/V solution that is meeting that need well, but there are potential integration and process streamlining options that we would find desirable and would consider.

	46. 
	33
	3.3.3.2
	Q.     Please define the public access process:  What does this refer to?
A.      Public Access Process is a broad term that generally refers to the Legislature's web site and related functions.  Listserv, email notices, Facebook presence, Twitter, and other things used to keep the public informed of Legislative activity.

	47. 
	33
	3.3.3.2
	Q.     Please define the communications office and information desk reference what does this refer to?
A.      Communications office is our primary public information conduit.  Includes the library, publications sales and distribution, web content coordinator, and A/V coordinator.  The information desk handles calls, messages, inquiries, and other interactions between legislators and outside individuals during legislative sessions.   See Appendix D for details.

	48. 
	33
	3.3.3.2
	Q.     Please define the sergeants office reference what does this refer to?
A.      Sergeant at Arms.  The security and administrative personnel for the House and Senate.  They collect and use legislator and administrative information, but their processes are generally outside the scope of this project.  See Appendix D for details.

	49. 
	33
	3.3.3.2
	Q.      Would the MT Leg consider two vendors working together?  One on Phase I and II that provides bill drafting, with Phase II vendor that provides agenda, minutes, voting and webcasting?
A.      LSD requires a primary contractor for this RFP\project.  That contractor may contract work to subcontractors, and all of those subcontractors must be identified and their roles defined in the RFP response.

	50. 
	33
	3.3.3.2
	Q.     “The costs for this section should be identified separately in the pricing section of the RFP because LSD may choose to implement these functional areas as part of the SSR project or may choose not include them.” –
Are these costs included in the budget set for this RFP?
A.      If you are proposing to deliver the functionality described in these topic areas they must be included in the total cost.  The budget it fixed.  Propose all functionality, services and project components you can successfully deliver for the total cost you provide in section 5.2.10.

	51. 
	33
	3.3.4
	Q.      Are there any other authentication systems besides Novell the SSR will need to authenticate users against?
A.      Appendix F states "details below may have legacy references to a Novell environment.  This was replaced with Microsoft technologies in 2011."  Novell is no longer used at LSD.  Users will authenticate using Active Directory.

	52. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.      Please explain the communication technology behind the query service?  If it is direct database, is the query obfuscated, if so, how?
A.      Outside agencies are given read-only access to Oracle tables\views.  They write and maintain their queries.

	53. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.      Please explain the infrastructure and security behind the query service.  Meaning, how do outside parties access the query service without compromising the systems?
A.      Outside agencies are given read-only access to Oracle tables\views.  They write and maintain their queries.

	54. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.      Is there a desire to continue to use Folio or should that be replaced with some other software for offline MCA creation?
A.      The current Folio system provides users powerful search features, tables, bookmarks, tags, views, and reports that are very valuable to the end user.  These features are desired moving forward.  The offeror may propose a new method of providing this functionality or may provide the input to the existing CD-ROM process.  A technology solution that is more modern is desired, but not mandatory.

	55. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.      What kind of file formats are currently being sent to the Publishing Contractor and Index Contractor? What kind of files will they accept?
A.      Adobe PDF.  In addition, LSD would be open to exploring the use of XML with these vendors.

	56. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.      Do you have a list of queries that are currently being run against the Query Service?
A.      No.

	57. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.      If the contractor replaced the Query Service with a new service that conformed to industry standards (such as a SOAP or REST based service), would the current agencies using the Query Service be able to adapt to this change?
A.      Yes, they would have to.

	58. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.      What is the bill status tracking system? What interface (e.g. web service) does it present to the agencies that use it?
A.      The DOA bill status tracking system is populated using a set of queries that connects directly to the LAWS DB. Beyond that, LSD is not responsible for the system and doesn't track what is presented to the agencies.  The queries pull bill status details similar to those found on the LSD web site: http://laws.leg.mt.gov/legprd/LAW0203W$BSRV.ActionQuery?P_SESS=20131&P_BLTP_BILL_TYP_CD=HB&P_BILL_NO=100&P_BILL_DFT_NO=&P_CHPT_NO=&Z_ACTION=Find&P_ENTY_ID_SEQ2=&P_SBJT_SBJ_CD=&P_ENTY_ID_SEQ=.

	59. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.     Do the vote systems have direct access to the write the LAWS DB?
A.     Yes.

	60. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.      Briefly describe the expectations on how the SSR will communicate with the MCA creation software.
A.     The SSR project will create the system and infrastructure that is the MCA creation software.

	61. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.     “The system must create or interface data to the Folio replacement software and distribution media.” –
What is the Folio replacement software?
A.      If you are proposing replacement software for Folio, LSD expects the interface to that new software to be provided within the scope and cost of your proposal.  If you are not proposing a new solution, LSD expects the current interfaced file format to be provided within the scope and cost of the proposal.

	62. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.      Is the LAWS DB being replaced as part of the project?
A.      The replacement of the LAWS DB is completely dependent upon the system being proposed.  The proposed solution may include an existing DB, may interface with LAWS DB (unchanged), or may interface with an enhanced version of the LAWS DB.  If the LAWS DB is to be enhanced, the vendor must include that work as being in scope and a part of the contract resulting from this RFP.

	63. 
	34
	3.3.4
	Q.     “Query Service - currently a number of external agencies have queries into the LAWS DB. This must be replicated or offered as a service. The Governor’s Office, DPHHS, and the Department of Revenue are examples.” –
Is more detail available on this service?
A.      Outside agencies are given read-only access to Oracle tables\views.  They write and maintain their queries.

	1. 
	33
	3.4
	Q.     “Any data sent or received electronically from any source for inclusion in the SSR system must meet data element specifications and file layouts required by the SSR system. The contractor must work with external source agencies to develop file formats and testing processes that work for both parties to ensure that files sent and received from other sources are in the proper formats” –
Is more detail on the interfaces available? Is the vendor expected to supply a fixed cost estimate for this work?
A.      This requirement is stating that the proposed system may itself require data to be interfaced into the system.  If this is the case, the vendor is expected to work with the source organization to develop the file formats and testing required to populate the system as needed.  The vendor should be aware of any interfaced input required by their system to operate successfully.

	2. 
	35
	3.4.1.2
	Q.      What database platforms are currently in use and able to be supported by Montana IT resources?
A.      Currently used in LSD and supported locally:  Oracle.  SQL Server.  MS Access.

	3. 
	36
	3.4.1.3
	Q.     “…three most widely used browsers” Please specify which browsers, on which operating systems, and which specific versions of the browser and the o/s, we are required to support.
A.      Internet Explorer, Safari, and Chrome.

	4. 
	36
	3.4.1.3
	Q.      Please define "the three widely used browsers nationwide."
A.      See response to question #66.

	5. 
	36
	3.4.1.3
	Q.      What are the specific “platforms” and “most widely used browsers” described here?
A.      See response to question #66.

	6. 
	36
	3.4.1.5
	Q.      What agreement(s) do you have in place with Microsoft?  Do you have an MSDN agreement?
A.      LSD has an enterprise agreement with Microsoft, for server licenses. We currently do not have our own MSDN agreement, but being affiliated with the State Information Technology Services Division we have access to use their agreement with Microsoft for Development.

	7. 
	36
	3.4.1.6
	Q.     “Provide a mechanism for status and metric reporting on performance of hardware”  Please clarify the State’s intention on this point as we expect that the State’s IT team likely has a number of monitoring tools already in place.
A.      LSD needs to know that the combination of the recommended hardware, software, and application is capable of creating these types of metrics.

	8. 
	36
	3.4.1.6
	Q.      Is the State managing the hardware installation and support?
What is the expected resource requirement from the contractor for hardware support services during the contract?
A.      LSD will manage the installation and support of all hardware.  Contractor support requirements are specifically stated in sections 3.4.1.1, 3.4.1.2, and 3.4.1.3,

	9. 
	36
	3.4.1.6
	Q.      Which hardware vendor(s) do you have agreement(s) with (i.e. HP, Dell, etc.)?
A.      As a State of Montana branch we use the Western States Contracting Alliance (WSCA) contract to purchase computer equipment. Under the WSCA contract we have access to many hardware vendors including but not limited to the following (Dell, HP, IBM, Lenovo, etc.), http://gsd.mt.gov/content/Docs/WSCANASPO_PCPremSavings_Nov-2013.pdf. (http://svc.mt.gov/gsd/apps/termcontractdefault.aspx) 

	10. 
	39
	3.4.5
	Q.      Briefly describe the use of bar codes with regard to the bill's workflow.
A.      Currently no bar codes or other machine readable codes are used on bills.  They are in use at other state legislatures.  We want to have machine readable codes, or the ability to produce them at some point.   See "Important Note" in the second paragraph of section 3.3 of the RFP.

	11. 
	39
	3.4.6
	Q.      Approximately how many documents currently exist in the MCA database (for an individual edition, and as a whole)? What is the approximate size (in GB, for example) of all of the documents in the aggregate?
A.      The MCA total size is 5.125MB based on mainframe storage concepts.  The documents range in size from a few bytes to several KB based on how we process the MCA on the mainframe.  There are slightly over 67,000 documents that make up the MCA.
The Annotations documents have a similar footprint.

	12. 
	40
	3.4.6
	Q.     “The contractor must then extract, manipulate, scrub, and otherwise prepare the data and then load the data into the SSR data structure.” –
Will state staff be available to extract the data and confirm the inventory?
A.      Yes, State staff will participate in and support this critical process.  

	13. 
	40
	3.4.7
	Q.      Is the Montana Legislature open to using cloud-based virtual machines (VMs) for non-production and disaster recovery environments?
A.      The Montana Legislature is open to using cloud-based virtual machines if the proposed options are cost effective, secure, and enhance the overall design of the system. 

	14. 
	41
	3.4.7.4
	Q.      Is the Montana Legislature open to using cloud-based virtual machines (VMs) for the production environment?
A.      The Montana Legislature is open to using cloud-based virtual machines if the proposed options are cost effective, secure, and enhance the overall design of the system.

	15. 
	42
	3.4.8
	Q.      If possible, please provide a more precise definition on "The system should perform without users having to wait for the system to complete processing before being able to continue their work."
A.      The system should return results, a refreshed window or 'next step' item without the user being frustrated because they have to wait for the system to respond.  See requirement 244 for a break down.

	16. 
	42
	3.4.8
	Q.      Can you provide more specific performance expectations that can be provided in metrics or in written explanation?
A.      See response to question #78.

	17. 
	42
	3.4.8
	Q.     “The system should perform without users having to wait for the system to complete processing before being able to continue their work.” –
Can you elaborate on the requirement in this? What specific types of tasks are being described here?
A.       See response to question #78.

	18. 
	47
	5.2.10
	Q.      According to this section, the total firm fixed price is a sum of Sections 5.2.1 through 5.2.9. However, license costs are in 5.2.12 and hence are not included in the firm fixed price. Is it true that license costs are not included in the firm fixed price (and hence the $4.8M cap)?
A.      The response to section 5.2.10 must be the total firm fixed price for all costs that will be incurred by LSD during the contract period defined by this RFP.  This includes any license costs (if applicable).  Costs that will not be incurred during the contract period provided by this RFP must NOT be included in the response to item 5.2.10.  The response to section 5.2.12 should provide detailed descriptions and information about the license structure and must include any costs that are applicable after the contract period – including license, upgrades and/or new releases.  As noted in 3.2.7.1, enhancements will be managed through change control using specifically designed enhancement proposals to define scope, timing and cost. 

	19. 
	47
	5.2.12
	Q.      Does the software license cost include COTS software not directly related to the Session Systems need to be included in this cost? An example would be Integrated Development Environments (IDEs) for Montana Legislature developers.
Also, do the costs of these COTS products “count against” the $4.8M cap?
A.      The response to section 5.2.12 must include any costs related to the fees charged by the contractor for the system and project itself.  Environment costs (e.g. server hardware and software) are not included in the $4.8M cap.

	20. 
	47
	5.3
	Q.     “The holdback will be tendered on a monthly basis during the two-year warranty period.” –
Earlier in the RFP it stated that the holdback would be paid on final acceptance. Please clarify.
A.      LSD expects final acceptance to be a milestone which will likely have a payment associated minus a holdback amount.  The holdback will be tendered on a monthly basis during the two-year warranty period.

	21. 
	49
	6.2
	Q.     The RTM is assigned a total weight of 1,100 points.  Many of the entries in the RTM are not connected with a business process referred to in the RFP, or to any process at all.
Please provide detailed scoring information re: the RTM so that we can understand how the 1,100 points are allocated.
A.       Each RTM item will have just over 1 point allocated (total points divided by total number of requirements) and will receive points based on the detailed description provided in section 3.3.1 Response Guideline.  There are 1062 requirements worth 1100 points:

Meets = 100% or 1.036 points

Minor = 85% or 0.881 points

Moderate = 75% or 0.777 points

Major = 50% or 0.518 points

Does Not Meet = 0 points

All information in section 3.3 will be considered and evaluated as a basis for understanding what your system will provide.  The additional sections 3.3.2, 3.3.3, and 3.3.4 will be scored taking all information, descriptions and the RTM into account.

	22. 
	52
	Apdx B
	Q.     The RFP states that: "The contractor warrants that hardware provided is free from defects in materials and workmanship and conforms to the specifications". However, in section 3.4.1 (page 35) , it says, that that LSD has purchasing agreements that will be used as needed for purchasing hardware. Also, in section 3.4.4 (page 38), it says that LSD will provide central servers. Can you confirm that the intent is for LSD to purchase the server hardware? And, if LSD is purchasing the server hardware, can we assume that the contractor is not subject to the hardware warranty for any hardware purchased by LSD?
A.     Yes, the intent is for LSD to purchase server hardware.  The Contractor is only expected to warrant hardware that they provide, if any.

	23. 
	57
	19.4
	Q.     Is the Surety Bond mandatory for winning the contract?
A.     Yes.

	24. 
	57
	19.4
	Q.     Are the costs for the Surety Bond included in the RFP budget in section 5.1?
A.     Yes.

	25. 
	48
	Apdx D
	Q.      It seems that engrossing is not mentioned in Bill History. Does engrossing only occur as the last step before the document is enrolled and shipped to the governor, or is the document updated over the course of the process (as designated by "New Version Available")?  If the former, what triggers the “New Version Available” designation?
A.      Bills are engrossed whenever amendments to it are adopted throughout the bill's progress toward passage.  Each engrossment creates a new version.  

	26. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 5 (Security - Audit Trail): Does the audit trail need to audit access to business functions?
A.      No.

	27. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 7 (Security - Log User Access Profile History): Please describe "user's access profile."
A.      Details of system activity, sign in attempts, successfully log in, log off, workflow activity.

	28. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 22 (Zip code table): Is the term "code table" referring to "reference data"?
A.      A zip code table would be used by the system to populate a drop down list of valid zip code values.  The United States Postal Service updates zip codes on a periodic basis and thus this table needs to be updated in the system in order to keep values current.

	29. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 22 (Zip code table):  Briefly explain the business process behind the automated update cycle for zip-codes.  Meaning, why is it needed?
A.      See response to question #91.

	30. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 33 (Analyze Database): Assuming this was not intended to mean accuracy of existing data, but rather accuracy of data retrieval and persistence as it pertains to the original data migration and as part of the application execution.
A.      We believe this is referencing item #34 rather than #33. After conversion, the data should be analyzed to ensure that information and relationships are accurate.  Going forward, the data will be analyzed to identify any problems (orphaned records, broken references/keys, etc.), and queries will be evaluated to ensure that they are running with optimal efficiency.

	31. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 54 (Entity Role): Would the system require they select their acting role (separate logins currently as I understand), or would that determination need to be made based on the context of a change; what if ambiguity exists in certain pages?
A.      The system should understand who by role(s) is logged in and not require separate logins for different functions.  See "Important Note" in the second paragraph of section 3.3 of the RFP.

	32. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 96 (User Manual): Are the expectations of the user manual to be in the medium of a written document or can it be another medium such as "how to videos"?
A.      User manual need not be hardcopy.  However it is produced, it is desirable that it be easily updatable.

	33. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 97 (Administrative Functions - Core Application-Configure Imaging & Scanning Setting): Are the expectations of this requirement that the system will interface with scanning equipment directly? If so, are there expectations that interfacing with the scanning equipment will populate fields within the system based on what is scanned in?
A.      If the proposed system allows users to scan documents in as part of the attachment process, there must be a way to configure scanner options as part of that process.  Populating appropriate fields based on document information (barcode, form fields, etc.) would be ideal.

	34. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 101 (External images received): What is the proposed interface for these external sources? Do they have system logins?
A.      These items would be files stored on the network or PC that would be attached to the entity, record, or work item.

	35. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 102 (Image): Does this mean the ability create a PDF, or is this to support redaction for censoring and FOIA?
A.      See response to question #97.

	36. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 103 (Image Documents): Can we assume that this can be accomplished either using a scanner or similar mechanism, or via an upload of allowable file types; as opposed to user uploading an arbitrary file type and the system need to have a catalog of converters.
A.      Yes.

	37. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 107 (Image summary): Please briefly expand further on this requirement.
A.      If your system includes the ability to scan batches of files (usually separated by a bar code) the system must provide a summary of the items, documents, and pages that were scanned in as a batch.  This will allow the user to verify document and page counts.

	38. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 114 (Move Images): Please define “groupings.”
A.      If a scanned document is incorrectly included in a document type or group, or if a page is incorrectly scanned into the wrong document, an administrator must be able to move documents/page into the correct place.

	39. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 116 (Redaction abilities): How is the sensitive data masked?  Is this done using a paint-like user interface?
A.      Our current system does not include scanning.  If the proposed system does include scanning, and does include redaction capabilities that feature should be allowed based on user roles/permissions.

	40. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 120 (Verify Quality of Imaged Documents): Is this achieved through some manual inspection?
A.      Yes, typically a check point for a user to do an evaluation of scanned documents.

	41. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 124 (Data Extracts): Please briefly expand further on this requirement.
A.      Data extracts must be tailored to each interface to ensure the best performance instead of performing a blanket query of numerous tables.

	42. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 129 (Standard Interface): Provide a standard interface format for interaction with eGov portal to reduce development and maintenance efforts.
A.      http://sitsd.mt.gov/techmt/egov/default.mcpx 

	43. 
	RTM
	129
	Q.      Provide a standard interface format for interaction with eGov portal to reduce development and maintenance efforts
Can the State provide documentation describing the current interface?
A.      http://sitsd.mt.gov/techmt/egov/default.mcpx

	44. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 130 (Receive Undeliverable Status for Address from Third Party Vendor): Is there a software package that is used currently for system initiated faxes?
A.      No - faxes are sent manually.  This requirement is asking for the ability for a user to manually note that an outbound item (mail, email, fax) was returned.

	45. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 145 (Notification send to): What exactly is meant here by "hierarchical address types"?
A.      The system should have a default notification order (always send by email first, but if email is blank, send by mail) that can be manually set on an entity (notification preference per person).

	46. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 156 (Accept Electronic Signatures): Can we assume that an electronic signature here means a pre-captured image of a person’s signature?
A.      Electronic signature has not been firmly defined to allow possible variation between proposed systems.  It is intended to imply a mechanism for a user to 'sign off' on a document in such a way as to record that a particular user acted upon the document with some level of confidence based on a user login or other such verification.

	47. 
	RTM
	156
	Q.      The System shall have the ability to apply electronic signatures to outbound documents.
Does electronic signature mean a signature image?  Alternatively, does it mean digitally signing the document in some, perhaps through PKI or other measure?

What is currently implemented?  What are the State’s standards in this regard?
A.      See response to question #109.

	48. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 213 (Report Retrieval): How will ad-hoc reports be assigned a report number?  Can we assume that an identical (or nearly identical) report created from scratch will be assigned a new report number?
A.      Yes.

	49. 
	RTM
	251
	Q.      The system shall be available for users from 6 a.m. through 6 p.m. Mountain Time during non-session periods, and during session from 5 a.m. through 1 a.m. (next day) on weekdays, and 6 a.m. through 6 p.m. on Saturday.  During this time, the system shall provide 99.95% or greater availability for all business functions.
These hours of operation are longer than hours required of the Help Desk as listed in the RFP.

Can the State please reconcile the discrepancy?
A.      This is correct.  Although users may be on the system late into the night or very early in the morning, we do not expect to have support for all those hours.

	50. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 261 (Document Image Search): can we assume that this means it will bring back the image that was created for a particular document, based on the text that was contained in the non-image version or based on keyword metadata associated with the image (as opposed to a need to OCR the image itself)?
A.      Yes.  Searching based on image metadata (type, name, date, related entity record, etc.) not information contained in the image itself.

	51. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 262 (Image search): Can we assume that this means metadata, such as user entered keywords or attributes of the image itself such as file type?
A.      Yes.

	52. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 299 (Data transmission): Where can we find information on these standards?
A.      Generally accepted security and best practices in this topic area is expected.

	53. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 306 (Granular access): Will field level access always be a grant, or are there situations where module access will be granted, but access to fields contained therein explicitly denied?
A.      Currently users are allowed access to certain forms or not - this will be very dependent upon the structure of the proposed system.  Describe the security model used by your system in detail in your proposal.

	54. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 317 (Permission Configuration): What is meant by “discretionary edits”?
A.      This would be similar to a 'drill down' type function where you could select an entire function to be 'allowed' but drill down an select certain items to be 'not allowed'.

	55. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 320 (Remove privileges from role): Does the ability to remove privileges mean unassociate a specific grant, or explicitly deny access to a sub-item is a module that has been granted?
A.      This means the administrator must be allowed to remove previously granted privileges from a role.  For example, if all 'bill drafters' had the ability to perform hypothetical functions A through E, the administrator must be able to remove privileges, in this example, remove function E.

	56. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 343 (State security): Where can we find these enterprise security processes?
A.      http://www.infosec.mt.gov/default.mcpx 

	57. 
	RTM
	345
	Q.      The system shall comply with the e-Government Service Certification Standard defined by the Department of Administration
Can the State please provide a copy of this certification standard?
A.     http://sitsd.mt.gov/content/techmt/egov/egovserv_cert_standard.pdf 

	58. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 345 (Usability - Compliance with e-Government Service Certification Standard): Where can we find these standards?
A.      http://sitsd.mt.gov/content/techmt/egov/egovserv_cert_standard.pdf 

	59. 
	RTM
	362
	Q.      Peripheral devices that are used with high frequency shall be "hardened."
Can the State please clarify this point?   What does hardened mean and what is the State’s expectation of software vendors to ‘harden’ peripheral devices?
A.      The term hardened is meant to imply devices that these items have minimal vulnerabilities and risks.  This would typically be proven by prior use with the proposed system at another site in production.  

	60. 
	RTM
	363
	Q.      The system shall be able to support additional channels of information delivery in the future with no significant changes to the architecture.
What channels has the State foreseen coming on-line in the next 5 years or more?
A.      The intent of this requirement is that the system should have the capability to scale into a larger footprint without a complete architectural redesign.  This would include adding new extracts, exports, and/or imported files.

	61. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 367 (Virus Free): What is the process for certification as virus and malware free?
A.      We don’t require third party certification to ensure that applications are virus and malware free.  If our virus\malware detection software detects malicious code we would expect the vendor to fix and remediate any such code.

	62. 
	RTM
	369
	Q.      The system shall be handicap accessible, as required by the following statutes:   a. 18-5-601-605 MCA, and b. the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  Unless specifically removed in detail design
Under what conditions during detail design would this requirement be removed?
A.      This will be very dependent on the system proposed, the amount of the system that is 'out of the box' and the existing features and functions that already meet the ADA standards.

	63. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 373 (Data Entry Layout): What is the difference between the data entry form and the online form? Is one a printable version that is later transcribed?
A.      The form and the window used to enter the data from the form should have a similar look, feel, and format to allow for easy and logical input by the user.

	64. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 391 (Effective dated workflow): How would the effective date for a workflow get set (manually or systemically)?  If manually, can the value be set to a future date, with the idea that it would trigger some action at that point in time?
A.      Workflows themselves will change over time.  If version 1 of a workflow is in effect and version 2 of that workflow should go into effect in X days, the user must be able to enter the effective end date of the first version and the effective start date of the new version.  

	65. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 399 (Processing accelerated): Is this through the legislative process of rules suspension, or non-legislative steps such as imaging. Are intermediate steps skipped and returned to later, or just looking for a facility to streamline the process on a single screen?
A.      Allow user to set a high priority on an item that will make it be processed faster through all steps than items with a lower priority.

	66. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 440 (Workflow between business units): Can a work item be in multiple queues simultaneously?
A.      No.  A work item can only be in one queue at a time, but must be able to flow between queues and users as actions are taken upon that item.  

	67. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 459 (Document Compare): Is this to compare two documents (i.e. bills), or two versions of a single document in the system?  Or instead, a mechanism to compare against an external document?  Or to compare a bill against the MCA for unintentional changes?
A.      This is the comparison of versions of the same document.

	68. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 461 (Calling cross reference): Is this just within the MCA, or is this also for proposed legislation that references the MCA?  Is this inline in the text in both cases, or a separate list of references?
A.      This is within the MCA.

	69. 
	RTM
	470
	Q.      Daily Journal -
Creating and publishing the Daily Journal is constitutional requirement and must provide all elements required.

What solution currently serves to create the Daily Journal, please?
A.      The Daily Journal process and associated systems are described in detail in Appendix D in the section called Daily Journal.

	70. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 470 (Daily Journal): Do running page number need to be pre-calculate so that actions taken on bills recorded in history or an index can automatically include page references to the journal?
A.      No.

	71. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 476 (Bill Version History): Can we assume that the ability to view bills through all versions, implies only to the point in time text presented on the printed document itself? Does that include major milestones, or intermediate saves as well?
How does the "promote to current version" reflect in the status/history?  Are there scenarios where that is not allowed (i.e. Bill has been passed in a certain form in one chamber).  Or, maybe the purpose of this requirement is not changing the current version internally, but rather what is viewable on the public site?
A.      Version history here refers to changes while in draft state (re-dos) and version changes due to engrossing of the bill.  See "Important Note" in the second paragraph of section 3.3 of the RFP.

	72. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 480 (WYSIWYG amending with track changes): Is the idea that these WYSIWYG changes will also generate the more traditional amendment language?
Is the idea that the engrosser can turn on these changes, and make any additional adjustments to make the document internally consistent, and provide a facility for conflict resolution?
A.      Ability to produce "traditional" amendment instructions is highly desirable, but we are looking for better ways to create amendments that laymen can understand.

	73. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 484 (Badge Bar Code sign in): For those who might not be interested in voting on a mobile device, how would those votes be captured?  Is there an administrative resource capturing this information?
A.      Ideally the new system could allow users a more accurate and efficient method of recording their presence in SSR related activities.  For those people without a badge (or verification item of some type) current manual processes will continue to be used.  

	74. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 488 (Tables within Bills): What table formatting needs to be supported for the copy/paste from Excel, and what formatting options need to be allowed once the table is embedded in the bill? For example: column width, border on/off, repeating header, alignment, row spans, column spans, nested tables.
A.      Fiscal bills have tables in the content - quite a lot of tables in some cases.  How they are produced is up to the vendor.  A sample fiscal bill can be found here:  http://leg.mt.gov/bills/2013/billpdf/HB0002.pdf.  See "Important Note" in the second paragraph of section 3.3 of the RFP.

	75. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 489 (PDF Bill): Would this be carried forward as a PDF, or is the idea the text would be extracted into the system?  In some cases PDFs have internally accessible text, other times such as with scanned documents that is not as easily possible.
A.      The PDF would be carried forward in an 'uneditable' format.  If changes were needed a new PDF would be attached.

	76. 
	RTM
	491
	Q.      Create IOS and Android compatible app
Does the app currently exist?  If yes, who developed the app and can the State please direct us to where we can find a copy?

Does the State expect the vendor to handle all aspect of working with the Apple iStore, for example, to have the app published?

As not all version of Android are the same, are the specific versions on specific devices that the State wishes to support?

Is this a mandatory requirement?  How would the State characterize this requirement vis a vis other requirements in the RTM or the RFP?
A.      This app does not exist currently and is not a mandatory requirement.  This concept has not been fully designed or explored.  This functionality is not part of the primary processes described in section of 3.1 and 3.2.1.4 and would be best described as 'nice to have'.

	77. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 499 (Page Breaks): Is there a two line minimum?
A.      Yes.

	78. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 510 (Markers): Is there currently a process in place to either create textual transcripts of these videos or include captions for the hearing impaired?
A.      No.

	79. 
	RTM
	522
	Q.      Integrate with IRC voting system - send agenda to the voting system, receive agenda changes from the voting system, and receive vote tabulation records.  This interface data will used as described in the business process document and related requirements.
What solution is currently used for the IRC voting solution?   Does the State wish to maintain this solution?
A.      The current voting system is provided by International Roll Call (IRC) and will not be replaced or upgraded as part of this project.  Data exchange to and from this system is expected to continue.  Expectation is that the new system will provide information to the vote system as is provided currently so as not to require changes in the voting system.

	80. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 522 (Vote system integration): Is the IRC voting system only for session proceedings (both chambers), or is there an installation in some hearing rooms as well?
A.      Only used for chamber votes.  No hearing rooms.

	81. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 527 (Archive printing): Can we assume that there are printers available with multiple trays to accommodate this, or that this is a request sent to the print shop.
A.      Yes.

	82. 
	RTM
	582
	Q.      Allow Supreme Court user access to system to allow them to update their own rules.
Could the State please expand upon this point?  Why is the Supreme Court user allowed to update their own rules?
A.      The supreme court currently is responsible for the identification and submission of changes to this information, but the changes are currently carried out by LSD staff.  The goal is to eventually allow these users to perform the data entry and possibly the proofing of these items in the future.   

	83. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 638 (Publication Files Ventura Format): Does the system need to continue generating WPD files? Is there a strict file format requirement from any third party software or services?
A.      WordPerfect not necessary.  Printing vendors currently are supplied PDF and SGML files.   In addition, LSD would be open to exploring the use of XML with these vendors.

	84. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 641 (Publication Files Session Law Table file): Does the system need to continue generating TBL files? Is there a strict file format requirement from any third party software or services?
A.      No.

	85. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 644 (Publication Files X files): Does the system need to continue generating X-files? Is there a strict file format requirement from any third party software or services?
A.      No.

	86. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 669 (Pre-introduction form access): Will agencies have active directory accounts that they can be authenticated against when logging in? If not, how will users be authenticated?
A.      Outside agency personnel have AD accounts, although they are on a different domain.  Cross-domain authentication would be required.

	87. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 675 (GO review draft bill): It was our understanding that the governor would not have access to the system. So, is this feature desired?  If so, should the governor also be able to use the system to record signature, votes, and amendments?
A.      It is desired that the GO would have an account and screens to manage the work sent to them.  That said, the Legislature cannot dictate that.  See "Important Note" in the second paragraph of section 3.3 of the RFP.

	88. 
	RTM
	745
	Q.      Manage the system to initiate a trigger for running the INT macro by the Bill Processor after the editing step is complete.
What is the INT macro, please?
A.      The business processes accomplished by the INT macro are described in Step 4, of the Session Bill Drafting section of the Bill and Amendment Drafting Process area of Appendix D.

	89. 
	RTM
	785
	Q.      Provide a facility to all visitors in the Hearing to be logged in the attendance system including the testifying person. The register should contain speaker's name, whether the person is testifying for or against the bill, and a signature and printed name.  All visitors must be signed in, and the system must allow for that information to be entered into the system and related to the hearing.
What solution currently serves this attendance register function, please?
A.      This is currently a paper sign in sheet.

	90. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 788 (During The Meeting Member Voting): Is there a requirement that the member be physically present for their voting option to be enabled?
A.      No, proxy votes are allowed.

	91. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 814 (Generate Amendment ID): Is the amendment number assigned when drafted or when files/introduced? Does this number need to be globally unique or just sequential for a given bill?
A.      Amendment ID is assigned when drafted.  The ID needs to be such that it can be related to the bill.

	92. 
	RTM
	931
	Q.      Provide the facility to the journal clerk to record and capture the orders of business that were taken by the Chamber.
What solution currently serves this function, please?
A.      Currently accomplished with WordPerfect.

	93. 
	RTM
	961
	Q.      Allow the system to have integration with the e-voting application so it can receive the voting information.
What solution currently serves this attendance register function, please?
A.      Question not in alignment with topic.  Voting system information provided above.

	94. 
	30
	3.3.1

(Apdx E)
	Q.      ID 999 (Bar Code): Is there a mechanism to record this manually in situations where the badge isn't swiped or is not functioning, or for non-badge-carrying speakers?
A.      LSD does not currently use a bar code system for this function.  Everything is hand written which causes issues and slows down the process.  A manual process would have to remain to accommodate those people without badges.

	95. 
	RTM
	1036
	Q.     Capture Budget -
LSD is currently upgrading their budget systems from MBARS to IBARS.  Allowing budget data to be imported or pulled into a financial bill is highly desirable.  There must be a process to load budget data into a bill that does not entail a user retyping the data that already resides in the budgeting system.  Like other bills, users must be able to see modifications to data (strikethrough, underline, etc.) which in this case will involve not only text but a high volume of numerical/financial data in a table/grid format.

Can the State please expand upon this point?  Will the budget data that is loaded be subject to revision and edit inside the financial bill?   If yes, does the State expect the system to deliver spreadsheet type functionality inside the bill, but outside of IBARS?
A.      The budgeting system can provide the data in a number of formats (*.XLSX, *.PDF, possibly XML and other open formats).  Ideally the budget changes will be made in IBARS and 're imported' into the bill.

	96. 
	RTM
	1058
	Q.      RTIC Request -
Allow for a bill request following the normal bill process.  This bill does not import from IBARS, but does contain a large volume of tabled financial figures.  The source is Excel spreadsheets.  Desire is to have columns and rows with headers that emulate a spreadsheet.

Can the State please expand upon the requested functionality?   We are reading this as something that looks like a spreadsheet, but is not a spreadsheet.   Does the State expect it to deliver spreadsheet-type functionality – formulas, summation and so on?
A.      The data will look like a spreadsheet.  This data, embedded in a bill, does not need to have spreadsheet functionality included (that can be done in tools outside the bill), but must be able to be formatted so data is presented in a logical, visually organized manner within the bill.  Alignment, spacing, fonts should all be taken into account.

	97. 
	7
	Apdx F
	Q.      Item 7 says "Bill drafts are hosted on Public Access IIS Web Servers (data.opi.mt.gov)". At what point does a Bill Draft become a Bill?  Are bill "drafts" generally made public before numbering or introduction?
A.      Bills are no longer hosted on data.opi.mt.gov, and are now all hosted on leg.mt.gov (also a public access IIS Web Server).  Bill drafts are made available to the public before introduction.

	98. 
	General
	
	Q.     How many drafters work at producing bills?
A.      20

	99. 
	General
	
	Q.     Are there any administrative or technical staff members helping drafters in the process of preparing drafts?
A.     There are technical support and trouble-shooting staff that assist if issues arise with the draft.

	100. 
	General
	
	Q.     How many regulations exist at the state level in Montana?
A.     Agency rules are published by the Secretary of State pursuant to sections 2-4-311 and 2-4-312, MCA, and are not part of this project. The Secretary of state publishes agency rules in the Montana Administrative Register (Register) and the Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM), and copies are available to the public free of charge at http://www.mtrules.org/.  According to the Secretary of State website, there “are 29 loose-leaf binders which house Montana's state agencies' effective rules. The Legislative Branch is unaware of the exact number of rules published by the Secretary of State.

	101. 
	General
	
	Q.     Are there drafters preparing regulations related to Acts/statutes?
A.     No.

	102. 
	General
	
	Q.     How many statutes exist at the state level in Montana?
A.      The Montana Code Annotated (MCA) is broken down into Titles, Chapters, Parts and Sections respectively.  There are approximately 41,000 Sections currently in the MCA.

	103. 
	General
	
	Q.     How many bills become Acts on an annual basis?
A.      Regular legislative sessions occur in Montana every other year.  Recent statistics from those sessions:  2013 = 423, 2011 = 419, 2009 = 489, 2007 = 527, 2005 = 611.  There are roughly 2000 requests of which roughly 1200 are drafted and roughly 900 are introduced per session (this can vary greatly from session to session).

	104. 
	General
	
	Q.     When converting the MCA, is there a need to convert the historical content?
A.     Not as part of the initial project but it may be desired later.

	105. 
	General
	
	Q.     If there is a need to convert historical content of the MCA, how far in the past should content be converted?
A.     Historical Conversion is outside the scope of this project.

	106. 
	General
	
	Q.     Are there images into the legislation content? If so, how many images are there in total?
A.      LSD does not have an image base that is expected to be converted as part of this project.  Imaging will be on a 'day forward' basis.

	107. 
	General
	
	Q.      Are there a lot of tables in the content? Also, how are they made accessible on the Web according to the W3C recommendations?
A.      Fiscal bills have tables in the content - quite a lot of tables in some cases.  Currently they are presented on the web in PDF format, and are not meeting W3C accessibility recommendations.  It would be highly desirable if they did in the future.

	108. 
	General
	
	Q.      Is there a need to maintain “point in time” access to the legislation for Intranet purposes or Internet publishing purposes?
A.      Yes, versions and version dates are needed.

	109. 
	General
	
	Q.      What is the cut-off date for the MCA? What is the date of the oldest version of the content that needs to be converted? Ex.: April 1st 1999.
A.      The entire MCA, including annotations, is current in TDMS on the mainframe.  This is the only version that must be converted.  Older electronic versions of the MCA exist on Folio CDs or on the Legislative Branch web page for historical or research purposes.

	110. 
	General
	
	Q.      How many resources are involved in engrossing the legislative content? Technical and non-technical resources.
A.      Three non-technical.  One technician.

	111. 
	General
	
	Q.      When a bill is presented, are there any supporting documents that need to be prepared in order to support the sponsors during the debates?
A.      No.

	112. 
	General
	
	Q.      How many different layouts (outputs) of the legislative content need to be available? In other words, in the process of producing legislation how many outputs are used? Ex.: output of the bill for the drafter revision (usually double or triple line space); official output of the bill for presentation on the floor; bill with engrossed amendments; official output of the bill once enacted: the Act; official output for the statutes once updated (engrossed) MCA; etc.
A.      A file of output examples has been loaded on the RFP web site as part of the response to this Addendum (Output Examples 20140528 final.xlsx).

	113. 
	General
	
	Q.      Apart from the documents listed in the Appendices of the RFP, are there other documents that are required in the process of managing and producing legislation? Could a list of all the documents required and an example of each be sent to us?
A.      LSD has provided the best level of documentation possible for this RFP.  There are not additional documents deemed valuable to the scope of this RFP.

	114. 
	General
	
	Q.      During the project will the key resources involved get a shadow resource so they are available to contribute to the project while their shadow takes care of the day to day business in the office?
A.      Although some work will be diverted to other resources as needed, LSD does not have the staff capability to release staff from their day to day responsibilities in the office.  The organization is fully committed to this project and will do everything possible to make resources available on a timely basis for as much time possible.

	115. 
	General
	
	Q.      Are there known windows of opportunity for the implementation into production and training of the staff? For example at the end of the session?
A.      As stated at the end of section 3.2.1, the 2015 Legislative Session starts in January 2015 and ends at the end of April 2015. The eight weeks prior to that date are very busy for the LSD technical and business staff, and some team members will be unavailable for various periods of time from January through July.

	116. 
	General
	
	Q.     What are the usual dates when the representatives/senators are in sessions?
A.     January to April of odd years (2015, 2017, 2019).

	117. 
	General
	
	Q.     How many bills are prepared/presented on an annual basis?
A.     See response to question #166.

	118. 
	General
	
	Q.     If there are regulations drafted, how many of these are there on an annual basis?
A.     See response to question #163.

	119. 
	General
	
	Q.      On an average basis, how many amendments are generated per bill presented? What is the highest known number of amendments for a bill?
A.      We don't track or have metrics on averages for amendments.  A typical bill would have 0 - 10 amendments if it went all the way through the process and became law.  The primary appropriations bill may have several hundred amendments.

	120. 
	General
	
	Q.      Is there a wish at the State level to adopt an Act to make the electronic version of the legislation the “official version”?
A.      Not at this time.

	121. 
	General
	
	Q.      We have not completed our detailed study of the RFP. Can you postpone the date for question period for two weeks?
A.      See response to question #1.

	122. 
	General
	
	Q.     Did any vendors not present at the pre bid conference assist in the development of this RFP?
A.     No vendors assisted in the development of this RFP.
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